
            City of Jacksonville Beach 
 

 Agenda 
 

    Board of Adjustment 
 
Wednesday, January 17, 2018 7:00 PM Council Chambers  

City of Jacksonville Beach           Page 1    Printed on 1/9/2018 
 
 

11 North Third Street 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

 
MEMORANDUM TO: 
 
Members of the Board of Adjustment 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 
 
Board Members:  
 
The following Agenda of Business has been prepared for consideration and action at the Regular Meeting of the 
Board of Adjustment. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Sylvia Osewalt (Chairperson), Jeff Truhlar (Vice-Chairperson), John Moreland, Scott Cummings, Thomas Buck,  
Alternates: Francis Reddington, Lucas Snyder 
 
ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 
EX-PARTE COMMUNICATION 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES January 2, 2018 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
OLD BUSINESS  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of Adjustment Agenda Wednesday, January 17, 2018  
 

City of Jacksonville Beach           Page 2   Printed on 1/9/2018 
  
 

NEW BUSINESS 
a. Case Number:  BOA 17-100216 

Applicant/Owner: Harold Cooper and Terry Phillips 

Agent:  Chad Williams, Tuff Shed, Inc.  

Property Address: 534 South 14th Avenue  

Parcel ID: 176872-0010 

Current Zoning: RS-2 

Motion to Approve: City of Jacksonville Beach Land Development Code Section(s) 34-337(e)(1)e., 
for 43% lot coverage; in lieu of 35% maximum; to allow a detached shed in the rear 
yard of an existing single-family dwelling, for property legally described as Lot 3, 
Block 146, Oceanside Park. 

 
Miscellaneous Info: No previous variance requests. 

 
Notes:
  
 
  
 
 
b. Case Number:  BOA 17-100217 

Applicant/Owner: Hasteh, LLC 

Agent:  Joe Loretta, Owen McCuller, Jr.   

Property Address: 1198 Beach Boulevard  

Parcel ID: 177502 

Current Zoning: C-2 

Motion to Approve: City of Jacksonville Beach Land Development Code Section(s) 34-343(e)(5), for 
88% lot coverage; in lieu of 85% maximum; to allow development of a 12,700 sq. 
ft. commercial building, for property legally described as a Part of Castro Y  Ferrer 
Grant, Section 38, Township 2 South, Range 29 East, Duval County. 

 
Miscellaneous Info: Three previous variance requests, (BOA# 16-100040, BOA#17-10025 

and BOA# 17-10026; One conditional use application PC# 28-16 and 
One site plan PC# 16-100222, on hold for review.) 

 
Notes:
  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of Adjustment Agenda Wednesday, January 17, 2018  
 

City of Jacksonville Beach           Page 3   Printed on 1/9/2018 
  
 

c. Case Number:  BOA 17-100219 
Applicant  Robert E. Barnes, Sr. 

Owner: Dr. Shannan Tarrar 

Agent:  Robert E. Barnes, Sr.   

Property Address: 679 South 12th Avenue 

Parcel ID: 179761-0150 

Current Zoning: RS-3 

Motion to Approve: City of Jacksonville Beach Land Development Code Section(s) 34-338(e)(1)e., 
for 44% lot coverage; in lieu of 35% maximum; to allow a pool and deck addition 
to a single-family dwelling, for property legally described as Lot 8, Block 117, 
Oceanside Park 

 
Miscellaneous Info: No previous variance requests. 

 
Notes:
  
 
  
 
 
 
d. Case Number:  BOA 17-100220 

Applicant/Owner: Laura B. Lybrand 

Property Address: 1634 Westwind Drive 

Parcel ID: 179761-0150 

Current Zoning: RS-3 

Motion to Approve: City of Jacksonville Beach Land Development Code Section(s) 34-338(e)(1)c.3, 
for a rear yard setback of 8 feet, in lieu of 20 feet approved via BZA 30-87; 34-
338(e)(1)e., for 57% lot coverage; in lieu of 35% maximum; to allow a screened 
porch addition to a single-family dwelling, for property legally described as Lot 
10, Ocean Pond Unit Two. 

 
Miscellaneous Info: Two previous variance requests (BZA# 32-87, BZA# 30-90 – approved 

by City Council 8/20/1990). 
 
Notes:
  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of Adjustment Agenda Wednesday, January 17, 2018  
 

City of Jacksonville Beach           Page 4   Printed on 1/9/2018 
  
 

e. Case Number:  BOA 17-100221 
Applicant: Robert E. Barnes Sr.  

Owner: Mid Channel, LLC 

Agent:  Gary Carlee, Surfside Pools,   

Property Address: 3928 Palm Way 

Parcel ID: 181390-0070 

Current Zoning: RS-1 

Motion to Approve: City of Jacksonville Beach Land Development Code Section(s) 34-336(e)(1)e., 
for 42.5% lot coverage; in lieu of 35% maximum; 34-336(e)(1)g., for accessory 
structure setback of 3 feet, in lieu of 5 feet required; to allow construction of a 
swimming pool and deck addition to a single-family dwelling, for property legally 
described as Lot 7, Block 14, Ocean Terrace. 

 
Miscellaneous Info: Three previous variance requests (BOA# 16-100020, BOA# 16-100021, 

BOA# 16-100022). 
 
Notes:
  
 
  
 
 
 
f. Case Number:  BOA 17-100222 

Applicant/Owner: Melissa Rehfus 

Property Address: 2480 South Beach Parkway  

Parcel ID: 179840-0000 

Current Zoning: RS-2 

Motion to Approve: City of Jacksonville Beach Land Development Code Section(s) 34-337(e)(1)c.2, 
for a corner side yard of 6 feet, in lieu of  10 feet required; 34-337(e)(1)e., for 43% 
lot coverage; in lieu of 35% maximum; 34-337(e)(1)g., for an accessory structure 
(pool deck) setback of 4 feet, in lieu of 5 feet along the northerly property line, to 
allow a pool, spa and deck addition to a single-family dwelling, for property legally 
described as Lots 15 and 16, Block 1, Williams Coastal Boulevard Heights. 

 
Miscellaneous Info: No previous variance requests. 

 
Notes:
  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 



Board of Adjustment Agenda Wednesday, January 17, 2018  
 

City of Jacksonville Beach           Page 5   Printed on 1/9/2018 
  
 

g. Case Number:  BOA 17-100223 
Applicant:  Payne Roberts, LLC 

Owner: Marie Kirby Hamilton Living Trust 

Agent:  Christian Allen, Payne Roberts, LLC  

Property Address: 2123 South 2nd Street  

Parcel ID: 179393-0000 

Current Zoning: RM-2 

Motion to Approve: City of Jacksonville Beach Land Development Code Section(s) 34-340(e)(1)c.2, 
for a side yard and corner side yard setbacks of 5 feet, in lieu of 10 feet required; 
34-340(e)(1)c.3, for a rear yard setback of 10 feet, in lieu of 30 feet required; 34-
340(e)(1)f., for 53% lot coverage maximum; in lieu of 35% maximum; 34-
340(e)(1)h., for an accessory structure setback of 1 foot, in lieu of 5 feet required;  
to allow construction of three two-family dwellings, for property legally described 
as Lots 7, 8, and 9, Block “P”, Atlantic Camp Grounds. 

 
Miscellaneous Info: No previous variance requests. 

 
Notes:
  
 
  
 
 
h. Case Number:  BOA 17-100229 

Applicant:  John K. McPherson 

Owner: Marianne Pfeil Schneider 

Agent:  Scott Rae 

Property Address: 3315 South 1st Street  

Parcel ID: 181537-0000 

Current Zoning: RS-1 

Motion to Approve: City of Jacksonville Beach Land Development Code Section(s) 34-336(e)(1)c.1, 
for a front yard setback of 14.5 feet, in lieu of 25 feet required; 34-336(e)(1)c.2, for 
a northerly side yard of 8 feet, and a southerly side yard of 4.3 feet, each in lieu of 
10 feet required; 34-336(e)(1)e., for 45% lot coverage, in lieu of 35% maximum, to 
allow renovations and additions to an existing single-family dwelling, for property 
legally described as Lots 5, Block 5, Atlantic Shores, Oceanfront Section Division 
B. 

 
Miscellaneous Info: No previous variance requests. 

 
Notes:
  
 
  



Board of Adjustment Agenda Wednesday, January 17, 2018  
 

City of Jacksonville Beach           Page 6   Printed on 1/9/2018 
  
 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT REPORT 
 
The next scheduled meeting is Tuesday, February 6, 2018.  There are five (5) scheduled cases.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
NOTICE 
 
In accordance with Section 286.0105, Florida Statutes, any person desirous of appealing any decision reached at 
this meeting may need a record of the proceedings. Such person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the 
proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.  
 
The public is encouraged to speak on issues on this Agenda that concern them.  Anyone who wishes to speak should 
submit the request to the recording secretary prior to the beginning of the meeting.  These forms are available at the 
entrance of the City Council Chambers for your convenience. 
 
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons with 
disabilities needing special accommodation to participate in this meeting should contact the City Clerk’s Office at 
(904) 247-6299, extension 10, no later than one business day before the meeting. 



 

BOA180102mins  1 
 

Minutes of Board of Adjustment Meeting  
held Tuesday, January 2, 2018, at 7:00 P.M., 
in the Council Chambers, 11 North 3rd Street, 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chairman John Moreland called the meeting to order.   
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Chairman:               John Moreland  
Vice-Chairwoman:  Sylvia Osewalt  
Board Members:     Thomas Buck              Scott Cummings (absent)     Jeff Truhlar  
Alternates:               Francis Reddington    Lucas Snyder 
 
Chairman Moreland changed the order of the meeting agenda to accommodate the 
applicant first, followed by the Election of the 2018 Board of Adjustment Officers.  
 
Ex-parte Communications 
 
No ex-parte communications were received by the Board members. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
It was moved by Ms. Osewalt, seconded by Mr. Reddington, and passed unanimously, to 
approve the following minutes:  
 

• November 21, 2017  
• December 19, 2017 

 
CORRESPONDENCE:  None 
 
OLD BUSINESS:  None 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
(A) Case Number: BOA 17-100210 

Name of Applicant: Michel (Mike) Peck-Headley  
 
Property Address: 655 South 14th Avenue 
 
City of Jacksonville Beach Land Development Code Section(s) 34-
337(e)(1)c.2., for an easterly side yard of 7.1, in lieu of 10 feet, and for side yards 
totaling 12.1 feet, in lieu of 15 feet required; 34-337(e)(1)e., for 50.6 % lot 
coverage; in lieu of 35% maximum; 34-337(e)(1)g., for 0 foot accessory structure 
setback, in lieu of 5 feet required; to allow a garage addition and to ratify existing 
non-conforming pool deck, for property legally described as Lot 9, Block 137, 
Oceanside Park. 



 

BOA180102mins  2 
 

 
Applicant:  Michel (Mike) Peck-Headley, 655 South 14th Avenue, Jacksonville 
Beach, FL 32250, stated his hardship is his garage is nonconforming at only 9 feet 
wide.   
 
Mr. Moreland explained typically 50% lot coverage or more is not something the 
Board will approve.  He noted there was quite a bit of the property covered in pavers 
already and was surprised a variance was not applied for before this.  Discussion 
ensued about what was on the property, when it was purchased, where the original 
concrete was, as opposed to the paver installation that was added.  Mr. Peck-
Headley had a contractor remove the concrete in the front and put in pavers for a 
circular driveway.  He believed the contractor had pulled a permit for the job.  He 
was not aware he needed a permit to add pavers to his backyard around the pool.  
He would, however, be willing to take out whatever was necessary, to comply with 
the lot coverage determined tonight.  Discussion continued on the paver driveway.  
Mr. Buck pointed out most of the driveway was in the right-of-way, and a City 
permit would be required.  Ms. Osewalt asked Building Official Mr. Knight if he 
had the building permit history in the file to reference; Mr. Knight stated he did not.   
 
Mr. Moreland said having Mr. Peck-Headley remove the pavers around the pool, 
would reduce the lot coverage to under 50% lot coverage, the high 30’s, possibly 
39%.    
 
Mr. Knight was asked if the request for the 0-foot accessory structure setback, in 
lieu of the 5 feet required was to include the pump house.  He said it was only for 
consideration of the pavers.  
 
Public Hearing: 
 
There was no one from the public present to speak about the application. 
 
Motion:  It was moved by Ms. Osewalt, seconded by Mr. Truhlar, to approve 34-

337(e)(1)c.2., for an easterly side yard of 7.1, in lieu of 10 feet, and for 
side yards totaling 12.1 feet, in lieu of 15 feet required; 34-337(e)(1)e., 
for 48 % lot coverage; in lieu of 35% maximum; to allow for garage 
addition, to ratify existing non-conforming pool deck, for property 
legally described as Lot 9, block 137, Oceanside Park. 

 
Roll Call Vote: Ayes – John Moreland, Sylvia Osewalt, Jeff Truhlar, and Francis 

Reddington. 
 Nays – Thomas Buck  
 By a 4 to 1 vote, the motion as modified was approved. 
 

Election of 2018 Officers: 
 

Mr. Moreland began the discussion for the elections.  He stated traditionally, the 
Vice-Chairperson moves up as the Chairperson.  Mr. Reddington asked if the 
positions could remain the same.  Mr. Buck said in the past several years, there has 
always been a change in positions.  Building Official Mr. Knight reminded them a 



 

BOA180102mins  3 
 

vote to keep the officers in the same position would require a unanimous vote from 
the Board, and Mr. Cummings was absent from tonight’s meeting. Mr. Truhlar said 
he would accept the consideration as Vice-Chairperson.  

  
Motion:  It was moved by Mr. Reddington, seconded by Mr. Buck, [to nominate] 

Sylvia Osewalt as the 2018 Chairperson, and Jeff Truhlar as the 2018 
Vice-Chairperson. 

 
Roll Call Vote: Ayes – John Moreland, Sylvia Osewalt, Thomas Buck, Jeff 

Truhlar, and Francis Reddington. 
The motion was approved unanimously. 

 
Adjournment 

There being no further business coming before the Board, Mr. Moreland adjourned 
the meeting at 7:38 P.M. 

 Submitted by:  Catherine Martinich 
               Permit Specialist  
       Approval: 
         
             
 Chairperson 
        

Date:  ____________________________________ 
















































































































	BOA Agenda 180117
	January 2 2018 Minutes of BOA Meeting-CM  Rev 3 - FINAL
	Minutes of Board of Adjustment Meeting
	UCALL TO ORDER
	UROLL CALL
	No ex-parte communications were received by the Board members.
	UApproval of Minutes



	Variance pdf



